
CITY OF COVINGTON 
CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL & REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

www.covingtonwa.gov 

Tuesday, July 12, 2016         City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.          16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

Council will interview Arts Commission and 
 Economic Development Council applicants beginning at 5:20 p.m. 

CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 

OATH OF OFFICE TO NEWLY APPOINTED COUNCILMEMBER 

ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

PUBLIC COMMUNICATION 
• 2016 Citizen of the Year Proclamation
• 2016 Honorary Citizen of the Year Proclamation

RECEPTION FOR NEWLY APPOINTED COUNCILMEMBER AND CITIZEN AND HONORARY CITIZEN OF THE 
YEAR 

PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, not 
the audience or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes per 
speaker.  Speakers may request additional time on a future agenda as time allows. * 

APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Vouchers (Hendrickson)

NEW BUSINESS 
1. Consider Appointment to Arts Commission (Council)
2. Consider Appointments to Economic Development Council (Council)
3. Consider Resolution to Purchase 3.4 Acres of Property to Create SoCo Park (Newton)
4. Consider Awarding Christensen, Inc. General Contractor the Contract for Covington Aquatic Center

Room Addition Project (Newton)

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS 

PUBLIC COMMENT *See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section 

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/


EXECUTIVE SESSION – if needed 
 
ADJOURN 
 
Americans with Disabilities Act – reasonable accommodations provided upon request a minimum of 24 hours in advance 
(253-480-2400). 



Consent Agenda Item C-1 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  July 12, 2016 
 
SUBJECT:  APPROVAL OF VOUCHERS  
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  Vouchers:  Vouchers #34271-34324, including ACH and electronic fund 
transfers, in the amount of $346,669.19, dated June 24, 2016; and Paylocity Payroll Checks 
#1005448952-1005449062 and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1005449025-#1005449025 
inclusive, plus employee direct deposits, in the amount of $186,018.80, dated July 1, 2016. 
 
PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION: Not applicable. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: Not applicable. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Not applicable. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance _____ Resolution     X      Motion            Other  

 
Councilmember ___________ moves, Councilmember _________________ 
seconds, to approve for payment Vouchers: Vouchers #34271-34324, 
including ACH and electronic fund transfers, in the amount of $346,669.19, 
dated June 24, 2016; and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1005448952-
1005449062 and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1005449025-#1005449025 
inclusive, plus employee direct deposits, in the amount of $186,018.80, dated 
July 1, 2016. 
 
   
   
   
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 

 

1 of 52



2 of 52



3 of 52



4 of 52



5 of 52



6 of 52



7 of 52



8 of 52



9 of 52



10 of 52



11 of 52



12 of 52



13 of 52



14 of 52



Agenda Item 1 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: July 12, 2016 
 
SUBJECT:   CONSIDER APPOINTMENT TO OPENING ON THE ARTS COMMISSION  
 
RECOMMENDED BY: Pat Patterson, Recreation Manager 
    Ethan Newton, Parks & Recreation Director 
            
ATTACHMENTS:  Application provided separately. 

 
PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION:  Currently there are two vacant positions on the Arts Commission.  Position 
No. 1 has a replacement term ending May 31, 2019.  Position No. 3 has a replacement term 
ending May 31, 2017. 
 
Will Cummings was interviewed by the City Council on July 12, 2016 for the Arts Commission.  
Mr. Cummings is within the three-mile radius of Covington city limits and is eligible for either 
position. 
 
NOTE:  Ordinance No. 11-10. Membership, terms, residence requirements:  “The Arts 
Commission shall consist of seven members appointed by the City Council, two of which may be 
youth members who must be between the ages of 14 and 18 at the start of their terms.  Up to two 
of the members may reside outside the City, but those outside must reside within a three-mile 
radius of the City limits. The remaining five members must work or reside within the City 
limits.” 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
Not appoint at this time and direct staff to continue to advertise for additional applicants to be 
considered for the open position. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:  ____ Ordinance            Resolution       X     Motion            Other  

 
Councilmember ______________ moves, Councilmember ________________ 
seconds, to appoint _________________ to fill open Position No. 1 on the Arts 
Commission with a term expiring May 31, 2019. 
 

or 
 

Councilmember ______________ moves, Councilmember ________________ 
seconds, to appoint _________________ to fill open Position No. 3 on the Arts 
Commission with a term expiring May 31, 2017. 

 
REVIEWED BY: City Manager, Parks & Recreation Director  
   

15 of 52



Agenda Item 2 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: July 12, 2016 
 
SUBJECT:   APPOINTMENTS TO OPENINGS ON THE COVINGTON ECONOMIC 

DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL (CEDC).  
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Regan Bolli, City Manager 
         
ATTACHMENT(S): See Interview Schedule and Applications provided separately. 
 
PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION:     
Five CEDC terms will expire on July 31, 2016.  Three of these terms are to be appointed by the 
City of Covington.  Each term is for a period of two years.  The city received four applications 
for appointment to CEDC.  All applicants reside or work inside Covington city limits. 
 
Name of Applicant          
Jon Steve (interviewed July 12) 
Laura Roth (interviewed July 12 and currently serving on CEDC; term ends 07/31/2016) 
Adam Turley (interviewed July 12) 
Matt McMahen (interviewed July 12) 
   
ALTERNATIVES: 
Not appoint at this time and direct staff to continue to advertise for additional applicants. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:  _____ Ordinance            Resolution      X     Motions              Other  

 
Council member _____________ moves, Council member ________________ 
seconds, to appoint _______________ to fill a position on the Covington 
Economic Development Council with a term expiring July 31, 2018.  
 
Council member _____________ moves, Council member ________________ 
seconds, to appoint _______________ to fill a position on the Covington 
Economic Development Council with a term expiring July 31, 2018.  
 
Council member _____________ moves, Council member ________________ 
seconds, to appoint _______________ to fill a position on the Covington 
Economic Development Council with a term expiring July 31, 2018.  
 

REVIEWED BY: City Manager 
   

16 of 52



 Agenda Item 3   
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: July 12, 2016 
 
SUBJECT:  CONSIDER A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 

EXECUTE A REAL ESTATE PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT AND 
OTHER CLOSING DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO COMPLETE THE 
PURCHASE OF 3.4 ACRES OF PROPERTY FOR THE PURPOSE OF 
CREATING SOCO PARK 

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Ethan Newton, Parks & Recreation Director 
                                          
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Proposed Resolution 
2. Real Estate Purchase and Sale Agreement 

 
PREPARED BY:  Ethan Newton, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
EXPLANATION: 
In accordance with the city’s Parks, Recreation and Open Space (PROS) Plan, the city has 
prioritized the purchase of three parcels on Wax Road to form SoCo Park in the Parks Capital 
Improvement Plan (CIP). The first parcel identified for acquisition is known as the Allmand 
property and is approximately 3.4 acres in size. For the purpose of acquiring this property, the 
council has approved a resolution authorizing a Recreation and Conservation Office (RCO) grant 
application in 2014, approved the awarded RCO grant contract in 2015 and approved the 
remaining allocation of funds necessary to complete the purchase as part of the 2016 city budget. 
 
Two appraisals have been completed on this property. The first was completed during June 2014 
and valued the property at $900,000. To comply with grant requirements a more recent appraisal 
was completed during August 2015 and valued the property at $810,000. 
 
This property has a utility easement on approximately a 15’ by 20’ area in the northern corner of 
the parcel. The utility easement agreement was adopted in 2010 for an initial five-year term and 
is currently in year two of an additional optioned five-year term. With optional renewal terms, 
the easement agreement may continue for a duration up to an additional 20 years after the end of 
the current term (30 years total). The property owner collects approximately $9,000 per year for 
the duration of the agreement. 
 
Soon after the purchase of this property, limited improvements to this site will be completed per 
grant requirements, including removal of the buildings, noxious weed control, installation of 
fencing and other basic land improvements to allow for public access to the site. Additional park 
development is planned once the other two targeted parcels for this park are acquired. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
The purchase cost for the 3.4 acres is $1,000,000. Additional related costs, such as closing costs 
and land improvements are estimated to be $195,933. Funding for this acquisition and related 
land improvements is available from multiple sources. The RCO grant provides $436,764, a 
King County Conservation Futures Program grant provides $492,716, city funds received from 

17 of 52



the King County Park Levy provide $60,000 and the city’s general fund provides the remaining 
$206,453 (approved as part of 2016 city budget). 
 
The utility easement associated with this property produces $9,000 a year (adjusted by CPI) in 
revenue for the property owner. Revenue from this easement agreement during the current term 
is approximately $36,000 over 3 years. If the easement agreement is renewed by the parties for 
the full additional 20-years (30-years total), an additional $180,000 of utility lease revenue 
would be collected over the 20-year period. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance    X     Resolution          Motion          Other 
 

Council member _______________  moves, Council member  
_______________  seconds, to pass a resolution, in substantial 
form as presented, to authorize the City Manager to execute a 
real estate purchase and sale agreement and other closing 
documents necessary to complete the purchase of 3.4 acres of 
property for the purpose of creating SoCo Park. 

 
REVIEWED BY:  Finance Director, City Attorney, City Manager 

18 of 52



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-14 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON, 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A 
REAL ESTATE PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT AND 
OTHER CLOSING DOCUMENTS FOR ACQUISITION OF 
PARK PROPERTY FOR SOCO PARK. 

WHEREAS, the City of Covington has a desire to acquire certain properties for city 
parks in accordance with the city’s Park, Recreation and Open Space Plan and Parks Capital 
Improvement Plan; and 

WHEREAS, the Allmand property (King County parcel 3622059071) may be obtained 
voluntarily from the current owner; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has approved a resolution authorizing a Recreation and 
Conservation Office (RCO) grant application in 2014, approved the awarded RCO grant contract 
in 2015 and approved the remaining allocation of funds necessary to complete the purchase of 
property for park development as part of the 2016 city budget; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Covington, 
King County, Washington, that the City Manager is authorized to execute a real estate purchase 
and sale agreement attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and other closing documents for acquisition of 
the Allmand property (King County parcel 3622059071) for the purpose of creating SoCo Park. 

ADOPTED in open and regular session on this 12th day of July, 2016, and signed in 
authentication thereof. 

_____________________________ 
Mayor Jeff Wagner 

ATTESTED: 

Sharon Scott, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM ONLY: 

Sara Springer, City Attorney 

ATTACHMENT 1

19 of 52



REAL ESTATE PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT 

THIS REAL ESTATE PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is dated 
as of June 27, 2016, and is made between The heirs at law of Okla T. Allmand, also appearing of 
title as Okla T. Allmond, deceased and the heirs and devisees of Lavelle W. Allmond, deceased 
(“Seller”), and the City of Covington, Washington, a municipal corporation of the State of 
Washington (“Buyer”), each a “Party” and collectively referred to as the “Parties”. 

RECITALS 

The following recitals are a part of this Agreement and are agreed to and accepted by the 
Parties: 

A. Seller is the current owner of certain real property identified as King County Parcel No.
362205-9071, located within the City of Covington, WA, more particularly described
below.

B. The Covington City Council authorized acquisition of the Property.
C. Seller is willing to convey and Buyer is willing to acquire the Property.  Title will be

conveyed by recordation of a Statutory Warranty Deed (the “Deed”).
Now, therefore, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which

is hereby acknowledged, Seller agrees to sell the Property to Buyer and Buyer agrees to purchase 
the Property from Seller, subject to the following terms and conditions: 

AGREEMENT 

1. Property.  Seller hereby agrees to sell and convey to Buyer, and Buyer hereby
agrees to purchase from Seller, subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein, the 
following: 

1.1 Land.  That certain real property located in King, County, Washington, 
consisting of approximately 148,104 square feet of land and more particularly described on 
Exhibit A, attached hereto and by this reference incorporated herein (the "Land"). 

1.2 Appurtenances.  All rights, privileges, and easements appurtenant to the 
Land including, without limitation, all minerals, oil, gas, and other hydrocarbon substances on 
and under the Land; all development rights, air rights, water, water rights, and water stock 
relating to the Land; and any and all easements, rights-of-way, and other appurtenances used in 
connection with the beneficial use and enjoyment of the Land (all of which are collectively 
referred to as the "Appurtenances"). 

1.3 Improvements.  All improvements and fixtures located on and 
permanently affixed to the Land (all of which are hereinafter collectively referred to as the 
"Improvements"). 

ATTACHMENT 2
EXHIBIT A

20 of 52



All of the items described to in Paragraph 1.1, 1.2, 1.3 above are hereunder collectively referred 
to as the “Property”. 
 

2. Purchase Price.  The purchase price shall be One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) 
(Purchase Price”).  Buyer shall pay the Purchase Price to Seller at Closing in the reasonable and 
accustomed manner.  Buyer represents that Buyer has sufficient funds to close this sale in 
accordance with this Agreement.   

  
 3. Escrow.  Within five (5) days following the execution and delivery of this 
Agreement, Buyer will open escrow with First American Title Insurance Company,  818 Stewart 
Street, Suite 800, Seattle, WA  98101 (the “Escrow Agent”), by depositing with Escrow Agent a 
copy of this Agreement. 

 
            4.  Closing.   

 
4.1 Time and Place.  The closing of this purchase and sale of the Property 

(the “Closing”) shall take place at the offices of First American Title Company, 818 Stewart 
Street, Suite 800, Seattle, WA 98101 within forty-five (45) days of mutual acceptance of the 
Agreement (the “Closing Date”) and as set forth in Paragraph 6 of this Agreement; provided, 
however, that the Parties may mutually agree to extend the Closing Date.  

 
4.2 Documents.  At Closing, Buyer shall deliver into escrow all funds and 

documents required from Buyer pursuant to this Agreement to complete the purchase of the 
Property.  At Closing, Seller shall deliver a fully executed Statutory Warranty Deed, in a form 
acceptable to Buyer, and such other documents and funds as may be required to close this 
transaction. 

 
4.3 Payment.  The Purchase Price, subject to any necessary reimbursements 

and/or adjustments, shall be paid by the Buyer at Closing.  Buyer shall not be required to make 
an earnest money deposit     

 
4.4    Proration.  All rents, real property taxes, interest, and other similar 

expenses associated with the Property shall be prorated as of the Closing Date, with Seller 
responsible for any such expenses relating to the period prior to and including the Closing Date 
and with Buyer responsible for any such expenses relating to the period after the Closing Date, 
regardless of when payment therefor is due.  Escrow Agent is instructed to prepare a certification 
that Seller is not a “foreign person” within the meaning of the Foreign Investment in Real 
Property Tax Act (“FIRPTA”).  Seller agrees to sign this certification.  If Seller is a foreign 
person, and this transaction is not otherwise exempt from FIRPTA, Escrow Agent is instructed to 
withhold and pay the required amount to the Internal Revenue Service. 

 
4.5    Closing Costs.  Buyer shall pay all escrow fees and other customary 

closing costs.  Seller shall pay all taxes due, including but not limited to real estate excise tax and 
those included in Paragraph 9.4 below.  

 
5. Possession.  Possession of the Property shall be delivered to Buyer at Closing.    

 

Page 2 of 12 
 21 of 52



6. Contingencies.  In addition to all other contingencies noted in this Agreement, 
this offer is contingent upon the following:  

 
  6.1 Approvals.  This Agreement is contingent upon approval of the City 

Council of the City of Covington.   
 
 6.2 Earnest Money.  No earnest money deposit shall be paid. 
 

 7. Title.   Title to the Property shall be conveyed to Buyer at Closing by Statutory 
Warranty Deed.  Title to the Property shall be marketable and free of all encumbrances, defects 
or exceptions, except for: (a) rights, reservations, covenants, conditions, restrictions, easements, 
and encroachments that may presently be of record; (b) such exceptions as may be set forth in 
the preliminary commitment, title order number(s) NCS-645854-WA1 /Covington/Allmand 
(Commitment) issued by (Title Company) and previously obtained by Buyer, a copy of which is 
attached as Exhibit B; and (c) such other exceptions as may be approved by Buyer   Monetary 
encumbrances not assumed by Buyer shall be paid by Seller on or before Closing.  Title to the 
Property shall be insured by a standard form owner’s policy of title insurance issued by Title 
Company in the amount of the Purchase Price, insuring Buyer’s interest in the Property.  Buyer 
shall obtain said title insurance, and the title insurance premium shall be paid by Buyer at 
Closing. 
 
 8. Seller's Representations and Warranties.  Seller hereby makes the following 
representations and warranties, which representations and warranties shall be deemed made by 
Seller to Buyer also as of the Closing Date: 
 
  8.1 Title.  Seller is the sole owner of the Property.  At Closing, Buyer will 
acquire the entire fee simple estate and right, title, and interest in and to the Property, free and 
clear of all recorded or unrecorded liens, encumbrances, covenants, restrictions, reservations, 
easements, options, tenancies, leases, encroachments, claims, or other matters affecting title or 
possession of the Property, subject only to the permitted exceptions included in Paragraph 7 
herein.   
 
  8.2 Compliance with Law.  To the best of Seller's knowledge the Property 
complies in all material respects (both as to condition and use) with all applicable statutes, 
ordinances, codes, rules, and regulations of any governmental authority having jurisdiction over 
the Property (including those related to zoning, building, subdivision, and engineering). Seller 
has no knowledge of any facts that might give rise to any violation of the foregoing matters.  
 
  8.3 Bankruptcy, Etc.  No bankruptcy, insolvency, rearrangement, or similar 
action involving Seller or the Property, whether voluntary or involuntary, is pending, threatened 
by a third party, or contemplated by Seller. 
 
  8.4 Taxes and Assessments.  Other than amounts disclosed by the Title 
Policy, to the best of Seller's knowledge no other property taxes have been or will be assessed 
against the Property for the current tax year, and there are no general or special assessments or 
charges that have been levied, assessed, or imposed on or against the Property.   
 

Page 3 of 12 
 22 of 52



  8.5 Foreign Person.  Seller is not a foreign person and is a "United States 
Person" as such term is defined in Section 7701(a) (30) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as 
amended (the "Code") and shall deliver to Buyer prior to the Closing an affidavit evidencing 
such fact and such other documents as may be required under the Code. 
 
  8.6 Tax Returns.  With regard to the Property, Seller has filed all local, state, 
and federal tax forms that are required to be filed by Seller, has paid all taxes due and payable by 
Seller to date, and will pay all such taxes that become due and payable by Seller prior to the 
Closing or Seller agrees to have all current and past due taxes and any assessed or owing 
penalties deducted from the Purchase Price at Closing.   
 
  8.7 Mechanics' Liens.  No labor, material, or services have been furnished in, 
on, or about the Property or any part thereof as a result of which any mechanics', laborer's, or 
materialmen's liens or claims might arise. 
 
  8.8 Underground Storage Tanks.  To the best of Seller's knowledge, there 
are no cisterns, wells, subterranean storage, or underground storage tanks on the Property and 
underground storage tanks have not been removed from the Property. 
 
  8.9 Assumption of Liabilities.  Buyer, by virtue of the purchase of the 
Property, will not be required to satisfy any obligation of Seller arising prior to the Closing Date, 
other than such obligations so expressly assumed by Buyer pursuant to this Agreement or any 
liens or other obligations with respect to the Property which result from any action or activities 
by or on behalf of Buyer after the Closing Date.  Seller, after the Closing Date, will pay and 
discharge any and all liabilities of each and every kind arising out of or by virtue of the 
possession, ownership or use of the Property prior to the Closing Date and shall indemnify, 
defend, and hold Buyer harmless therefrom. 
 
  8.10 Defaults.  Seller is not in default and there has occurred no uncured event 
which, with notice, the passage of time, or both, would be a default under any contract, 
agreement, lease, encumbrance, or instrument pertaining to the Property.   
 
  8.11 Litigation.  There is no litigation or threatened litigation which could now 
or in the future in any way constitute a lien, claim, or obligation of any kind on the Property, 
affect the use, ownership, or operation of the Property, or otherwise adversely affect the 
Property.  For purposes of this Paragraph 8.11, litigation includes lawsuits, actions, 
administrative proceedings, governmental investigations, and all other proceedings before any 
tribunal having jurisdiction over the Property. 
 
  8.12 Violation of Property Restrictions.  To the best of Seller's knowledge, 
the Property and the current use, occupation, and condition thereof do not violate any applicable 
deed restrictions or other covenants, restrictions, or agreements (including, without limitation, 
any of the permitted exceptions pursuant to Paragraph 7 herein), site plan approvals, zoning, or 
urban redevelopment plans applicable to the Property. 
 
  8.13 Good Standing and Due Authority.  Seller has all requisite power and 
authority to execute and deliver this Agreement and to carry out its obligation hereunder and the 

Page 4 of 12 
 23 of 52



transactions contemplated hereby.  This Agreement has been, and the documents contemplated 
hereby will be, duly executed and delivered by Seller and constitute the Seller's legal, valid, and 
binding obligation enforceable against Seller in accordance with its terms.  The consummation 
by Seller of the sale of the Property is not in violation of or in conflict with, nor does it constitute 
a default under any term or provision of, any partnership agreement of Seller, or any of the terms 
of any agreement or instrument to which Seller is or may be bound, or of any provision of any 
applicable law, ordinance, rule, or regulation of any governmental authority or of any provision 
of any applicable order, judgment, or decree of any court, arbitrator, or governmental authority. 
 
  8.14 No Omissions.  All representations and warranties made by Seller in this 
Agreement, and all information contained in any certificate furnished by Seller to Buyer in 
connection with this transaction, are free from any untrue statement of material fact and do not 
omit to state any material facts necessary to make the statements contained herein or therein not 
misleading.  The copies of any documents furnished to Buyer in connection with this transaction 
are true and complete copies of the documents they purport to be and to the best of Seller's 
knowledge contain no untrue statement of material fact and do not omit to state any material 
facts necessary to make the statements contained therein not misleading. 
 
 9. Covenants of Seller.  Seller covenants and agrees as follows: 
 
  9.1 Perform Obligations.  From the date of this Agreement to the Closing 
Date, Seller will perform all of its monetary and non-monetary obligations under all indebtedness 
(whether for borrowed money or otherwise) and the liens securing same pertaining to the 
Property or any portion thereof, if any. 
   
  9.2 No Liens.  From the date of this Agreement to the Closing Date, Seller 
will not allow any lien to attach to the Property, nor will Seller grant, create, or voluntarily allow 
the creating of, or amend, extend, modify, or change any easement, right-of-way, encumbrance, 
restriction, covenant, lease, license, option, or other right affecting the Property or any part 
thereof without Buyer's written consent first having been obtained.  
 
 9.3 Provide Further Information.  From the date of this Agreement to the 
Closing Date, Seller will notify Buyer of each event of which Seller becomes aware affecting the 
Property or any part thereof immediately upon learning of the occurrence of such event. 
 
  9.4 Real Property Taxes.  Seller shall pay at or prior to Closing the pro-rata 
share of real property taxes due or to become due with respect to the Property for the period up 
to the Closing Date.  Seller shall pay in full any assessments due or to become due with respect 
to the Property prior to Closing, including all past due and owing taxes and penalties assessed 
against the Property.  Seller is responsible for payment of all taxes due related to this transaction, 
including but not limited to Washington State real estate excise tax.    
 
  9.5 Monetary Liens.  Seller shall pay or cause to be satisfied at or prior to 
Closing all monetary liens on or with respect to all or any portion of the Property including, but 
not limited to, mortgages, deeds of trust, security agreements, assignments of leases, rents and/or 
easements, judgment liens, tax liens (other than those for taxes not yet due and payable), and 

Page 5 of 12 
 24 of 52



financing statements.  Seller shall be responsible for payment of any monetary encumbrances to 
be paid off at closing.   
 

 9.6 Possession.  Possession of the Property shall be delivered to Buyer at  
Closing.   
 
 10. Environmental Compliance.  Seller warrants, represents, covenants, and agrees:   
 
  10.1 Hazardous Substances.  Seller has not used, generated, manufactured, 
produced, stored, released, discharged, or disposed of on, under, above, or about the Property (or 
off-site of the Property that might affect the Property), or transported to or from the Property any 
Hazardous Substance (as defined herein), or allowed any other person or entity to do so.  Seller 
has no knowledge nor has Seller observed any questionable practice or conduct indicating that 
any Hazardous Substance has been used, generated, manufactured, produced, stored, released, 
discharged, or disposed of on, under, or above Property (or off-site of the Property that might 
affect the Property), or transported to or from the Property by any entity, firm, or person, or from 
any source whatsoever. 
 
  10.2 Pre-closing Covenant.  Seller will not use, generate, manufacture, 
produce, store, release, discharge, or dispose of on, under, above, or about the Property (or 
off-site of the Property that might affect the Property), or transport to or from the Property any 
Hazardous Substance, or authorize any other person or entity to do so, prior to the closing.   
 
  10.3 Environmental Indemnity.  Seller shall protect, indemnify, hold 
harmless, and defend Buyer and its employees, agents, parents, subsidiaries, contractors, 
consultants, successors, and assigns from and against any and all loss, damage, cost, expense, or 
liability (including attorneys' fees and costs) directly or indirectly arising out of or attributable to 
a breach of any representation, warranty, covenant, or agreement contained in this Paragraph 10 
including, without limitation, (a) all consequential damages, and (b) the costs of any required or 
necessary repairs, cleanup, or detoxification of the Property and the preparation and 
implementation of any closure, remedial, or other required plans.  This indemnity does not apply 
to actions of Buyer, its agents, or independent contractors. 
 
  10.4 Definitions.  For the purposes of this Agreement, the term "Hazardous 
Substance" includes, without limitation, (a) those substances included within the definitions of 
"hazardous substances," "hazardous materials," "toxic substances," "hazardous wastes" or "solid 
waste" in any Environmental Law; (b) petroleum products and petroleum byproducts; 
(c) polychlorinated biphenyls; and (d) chlorinated solvents.  For the purposes of this Agreement, 
the term "Environmental Law" includes any federal, state, municipal, or local law, statute, 
ordinance, regulation, order, or rule pertaining to health, industrial hygiene, environmental 
conditions, or hazardous substances. 
 
 11. Indemnification.  Seller shall pay, protect, defend, indemnify, and hold Buyer 
and its successors and assigns harmless from and against any and all loss, liability, damage, and 
expense suffered or incurred by reason of (a) the breach of any representation, warranty, or 
agreement of Seller set forth in this Agreement; (b) the failure of Seller to perform any obligation 
required by this Agreement to be performed by Seller; (c) the ownership, maintenance, and/or 

Page 6 of 12 
 25 of 52



operation of the Property by Seller prior to the Closing, not in conformance with this Agreement; 
or (d) any injuries to persons or property from any cause occasioned in whole or in part by any 
acts or omissions of the Seller, its representatives, employees, contractor, or suppliers that 
occurred before Closing.  Seller shall defend any claim covered by this indemnity using counsel 
reasonably acceptable to Buyer. 
 
 12. Condemnation.  In the event of any commenced, to be commenced, or 
consummated proceedings in eminent domain or condemnation conducted by an entity other than 
Buyer (collectively "Condemnation") respecting the Property or any portion thereof, Buyer may 
elect, by written notice to Seller, to terminate this Agreement and the escrow created pursuant 
hereto and be relieved of its obligation to purchase the Property.  If Buyer terminates this 
Agreement pursuant to this Paragraph 12, neither Buyer nor Seller shall have any further liability 
to the other hereunder.  If Buyer fails to make such election prior to the Closing Date, this 
Agreement shall continue in effect, there shall be no reduction in the Purchase Price, and Seller 
shall, prior to the Closing Date, assign to Buyer, by an assignment agreement in form and 
substance satisfactory to Buyer, its entire right, title, and interest in and to any condemnation 
award or settlement made or to be made in connection with such Condemnation proceeding.  
Buyer shall have the right at all times to participate in all negotiations and dealings with the 
condemning authority and approve or disapprove any proposed settlement in respect to such 
matter.  Seller shall forthwith notify Buyer in writing of any such Condemnation respecting the 
Property. 
  
 13. Notices.  Unless applicable law requires a different method of giving notice, any 
and all notices, demands, or other communications required or desired to be given hereunder by 
any party (collectively, "notices") shall be in writing and shall be validly given or made to 
another party if delivered either personally or by Federal Express or other overnight delivery 
service of recognized standing, or if deposited in the United States mail (certified, registered, or 
express mail with postage prepaid).  If such notice is personally delivered, it shall be 
conclusively deemed given at the time of such delivery.  If such notice is delivered by Federal 
Express or other overnight delivery service of recognized standing, it shall be deemed given 
twenty-four (24) hours after the deposit thereof with such delivery service.  If such notice is 
mailed as provided herein, such shall be deemed given seventy-two (72) hours after the deposit 
thereof in the United States mail.  Each such notice shall be deemed given only if properly 
addressed to the party to whom such notice is to be given as follows:    

 
To Seller:  Ralph Allmand 

1751 Bettas Road 
Cle Elum, WA  
98922 

To Buyer: City of Covington  
Attention: City Clerk 
16720 SE 271st St., Suite 100  
Covington, WA 
98045 
 

Page 7 of 12 
 26 of 52



With copy to: Jeri J. Cranney 
Abaco Pacific, Inc.  
P.O. Box 1119 
North Bend, WA  98045 

 
Any party hereto may change its address for the purpose of receiving notices as herein provided 
by a written notice given in the manner aforesaid to the other party hereto. 
 
 14. Event of Default.  In the event of a default under this Agreement by Seller 
(including a breach of any representation, warranty, or covenant set forth herein), Buyer shall be 
entitled to seek monetary damages and specific performance of Seller's obligations hereunder, 
together with all and any remedies available at law and equity.   
  
 15. Miscellaneous. 
 
  15.1 Applicable Law.  This Agreement shall in all respects be governed by the 
laws of the State of Washington. 
 
  15.2 Further Assurances.  Each of the parties shall execute and deliver any 
and all additional papers, documents, and other assurances and shall do any and all acts and 
things reasonably necessary in connection with the performance of its obligations hereunder to 
carry out the intent of the parties hereto. 
 
  15.3 Modification or Amendment, Waivers, Extension of Time.  No 
amendment, change, or modification of this Agreement shall be valid unless in writing and 
signed by all of the parties hereto.  No waiver of any breach of any covenant or provision in this 
Agreement shall be deemed a waiver of any preceding or succeeding breach thereof or of any 
other covenant or provision in this Agreement.  No extension of time for performance of any 
obligation or act shall be deemed an extension of the time for performance of any other 
obligation or act. 
 
  15.4 Successors and Assigns.  All of the terms and provisions contained herein 
shall inure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective 
heirs, legal representatives, successors, and assigns. 
 
  15.5 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding 
and agreement of the parties with respect to its subject matter and any and all prior agreements, 
understandings, or representations with respect to its subject matter are hereby canceled in their 
entirety and are of no further force or effect.  The parties do not intend to confer any benefit 
under this Agreement to any person, firm, or corporation other than the parties.   
 
 15.6 Attorneys' Fees.  In the event of default, the defaulting party agrees to 
pay the non-defaulting party all reasonable expenses which are incurred by reason thereof 
including, but not limited to, reasonable attorney's fees, whether with respect to the investigation 
of such default or the pursuit of remedies with respect thereto, or in legal proceedings, or 
otherwise, and all such expenses of the non-defaulting party.  The term "legal proceedings" as 

Page 8 of 12 
 27 of 52



used in this paragraph shall include all litigation, arbitration, administrative, bankruptcy, and 
judicial proceedings, including appeals therefrom. 
 
  15.7 Construction.  Captions are solely for the convenience of the parties and 
are not a part of this Agreement.  This Agreement shall not be construed as if it had been 
prepared by one of the parties, but rather as if both parties had prepared it.  If the date on which 
Buyer or Seller is required to take any action under the terms of this Agreement is not a business 
day, the action shall be taken on the next succeeding business day.   
 
  15.8 Partial Invalidity.  If any term or provision of this Agreement, or the 
application thereof to any person or circumstance, shall, to any extent, be invalid or 
unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement, or the application of such term or provision to 
persons or circumstances other than those as to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, shall 
not be affected thereby; and each such term and provision of this Agreement shall be valid and 
be enforced to the fullest extent permitted by law. 
 
  15.9 Survival.  The covenants, agreements, representations, and warranties 
made in this Agreement shall survive the Closing unimpaired and shall not merge into the Deed 
and the recordation thereof. 
 
  15.10 Commission, Finders' or Brokers' Fees.  Buyer and Seller hereby certify 
that they have not used the services of any real estate broker or other entity or individual to 
whom a commission or fee shall be owed as a result of the Closing of this transaction.   
 
 15.11 Computation of Time.  Unless otherwise specified in this Agreement, 
any period of time stated in this Agreement shall start on the day following the event 
commencing the period and expire at 6:00PM of the last calendar day of the specified time 
period, unless the last day of the time period is a Saturday, Sunday, or Legal Holiday as defined 
in RCW 1.16.050, in which case the specified period of time shall expire the next day that is not 
a Saturday, Sunday, or Legal Holiday.  Any specified period of five (5) days or less shall not 
include Saturdays, Sundays, or Legal Holidays.  Time is of the essence of every provision of this 
Agreement.   
 
  15.12 Force Majeure.  Performance by Seller or Buyer of their obligations 
under this Agreement shall be extended by the period of delay caused by force majeure.  Force 
majeure is war; natural catastrophe; strikes, walkouts, or other labor industrial disturbance; order 
of any government, court, or regulatory body having jurisdiction; shortages, blockade, embargo, 
riot, civil disorder; or any similar cause beyond the reasonable control of the party who is 
obligated to render performance (but excluding financial inability to perform, however caused). 
 
  15.13 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in one or more 
counterparts.   
  

Page 9 of 12 
 28 of 52



This offer will expire if not executed by Seller on or before August 30, 2016.    
   
 
 
SELLER:  
 
The heirs at law of Okla T. Allmand, also appearing of title as Okla T. Allmond, deceased and 
the heirs and devisees of Lavelle W. Allmond, deceased 
 
 
             
       Date 
 
 
 
             
        Date 
 
 
BUYER: 
 
    
City of Covington, Washington, a municipal corporation of the State of Washington 
 
 
 
           
Regan Bolli, City Manager    Date 
 
 
 
       
Attested by: City Clerk 
 
 
      Approved as to form only:    
  
 
             
      Sara Springer, City Attorney 

  

Page 10 of 12 
 29 of 52



EXHIBIT 'A' 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 
 
 

 
THAT PORTION OF THE WEST HALF OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER AND THE SOUTHEAST 
QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 36, TOWNSHIP 22 NORTH, RANGE 5 
EAST, W.M., IN KING COUNTY,WASHINGTON, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
BEGINNING AT A POINT IN THE CENTER LINE OF COUNTY ROAD NO. 962, WHICH POINT IS 
853.4 FEET SOUTHWESTERLY FROM THE INTERSECTION OF SAID CENTER LINE WITH THE 
EAST AND WEST CENTER LINE OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER 
OF SAID SECTION 36; 
THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY AT RIGHT ANGLES TO SAID ROAD CENTER LINE 400 FEET; 
THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY PARALLEL WITH SAID ROAD CENTER LINE 400 FEET; 
THENCE NORTHWESTERLY AT RIGHT ANGLES TO SAID ROAD CENTER LINE 400 FEET; 
THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID ROAD CENTER LINE 400 FEET TO THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING; 

EXCEPT COUNTY ROAD NO. 962. 
  

Page 11 of 12 
 30 of 52



EXHIBIT 'B' 
 
 
 

TITLE COMMITMENT 
 
 

First American Title Insurance Company (NCS-645854-WA1) 
 
 

Page 12 of 12 
 31 of 52



  
Form WA-5 (6/76) File No.: NCS-645854-WA1
Commitment Face Page   
  

 

First American Title Insurance Company  
 

 

COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE 
Issued by 

FIRST AMERICAN TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY 
 

First American Title Insurance Company, herein called the Company, for valuable consideration, hereby 
commits to issue its policy or policies of title insurance, as identified in Schedule A, in favor of the 
proposed Insured named in Schedule A, as owner or mortgagor of the estate or interest covered 
hereby in the land described or referred to in Schedule A, upon payment of the premiums and charges 
therefor; all subject to the provisions of Schedules A and B and to the Conditions and Stipulations 
hereof. 
 
     This Commitment shall be effective only when the identity of the proposed Insured and the amount 
of the policy or policies committed for have been inserted in Schedule A hereof by the Company, either 
at the time of the issuance of the Commitment or by subsequent endorsement. 
 
     This Commitment if preliminary to the issuance of such policy or policies of title insurance and all 
liability and obligations hereunder shall cease and terminate six (6) months after the effective date 
hereof or when the policy or policies committed for shall issue, whichever first occurs, provided that 
the failure to issue such policy or policies is not the fault of the Company.  This Commitment shall not 
be valid or binding until countersigned by an authorized officer or agent. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the  Company has caused this commitment to be signed and sealed, to 
become valid when countersigned by an authorized officer or agent of the Company, all in accordance 
with its By-Laws.  This Commitment is effective as of the date shown in Schedule A as “Effective Date.” 
 

First American Title Insurance Company 

By:  President

Attest:  Secretary
 

  
    

By:

  

  
Countersigned 

  
=

32 of 52



  
Form WA-5 (6/76) File No.: NCS-645854-WA1
Commitment  Page No. 1
  

 

First American Title Insurance Company  
 

=  

 
First American Title Insurance Company  

National Commercial Services 
818 Stewart Street, Suite 800, Seattle, WA 98101 

(206)728-0400  -  (800)526-7544   FAX (206)448-6348  

  
Laura Lau Moniqueje Schmitt-Johnson 

(206)615-3017 (206)615-3141 
llau@firstam.com mschmittjohnson@firstam.com 

  

  
To: Abaco Pacific, Inc.  File No.:  NCS-645854-WA1
  Po Box 1119  Your Ref No.: 362205-9071 
  North Bend , WA 98045    
    
  Attn:  Jeri Cranney    
  

4th REPORT 
SCHEDULE A 

1. Commitment Date: June 01, 2016 at 7:30 A.M.  

2. Policy or Policies to be issued:  
  
    AMOUNT PREMIUM TAX 
  

  
             
ALTA Extended Owner Policy  $ 900,000.00 $ To follow $  
  
Proposed Insured: 
City of Covington, a municipal corporation 
  

3. The estate or interest in the land described on Page 2 herein is Fee Simple, and title thereto is 
at the effective date hereof vested in: 

The heirs at law of Okla T. Allmand, also appearing of title as Okla T. Allmond, deceased and the 
heirs and devisees of Lavelle W. Allmond, deceased 

4. The land referred to in this Commitment is described as follows:  

The land referred to in this report is described in Exhibit "A" attached hereto. 

33 of 52



  
Form WA-5 (6/76) File No.: NCS-645854-WA1
Commitment  Page No. 2
  

 

First American Title Insurance Company  
 

 

EXHIBIT 'A' 
  

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 
  
THAT PORTION OF THE WEST HALF OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER AND THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF THE 
NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 36, TOWNSHIP 22 NORTH, RANGE 5 EAST, W.M., IN KING COUNTY, 
WASHINGTON, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
BEGINNING AT A POINT IN THE CENTER LINE OF COUNTY ROAD NO. 962, WHICH POINT IS 853.4 FEET 
SOUTHWESTERLY FROM THE INTERSECTION OF SAID CENTER LINE WITH THE EAST AND WEST CENTER LINE 
OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 36; 
THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY AT RIGHT ANGLES TO SAID ROAD CENTER LINE 400 FEET; 
THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY PARALLEL WITH SAID ROAD CENTER LINE 400 FEET; 
THENCE NORTHWESTERLY AT RIGHT ANGLES TO SAID ROAD CENTER LINE 400 FEET; 
THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID ROAD CENTER LINE 400 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; 
 
EXCEPT COUNTY ROAD NO. 962. 

34 of 52



  
Form WA-5 (6/76) File No.: NCS-645854-WA1
Commitment  Page No. 3
  

 

First American Title Insurance Company  
 

 

SCHEDULE B - SECTION 1 
       REQUIREMENTS 

  
The following are the Requirements to be complied with: 
  
  
Item (A) Payment to or for the account of the Grantors or Mortgagors of the full consideration for the 

estate or interest to be insured. 
    
Item (B) Proper instrument(s) creating the estate or interest to be insured must be executed and duly 

filed for record. 
    
Item (C) Pay us the premiums, fees and charges for the policy. 
    
Item (D) You must tell us in writing the name of anyone not referred to in this Commitment who will 

get an interest in the land or who will make a loan on the land. We may then make 
additional requirements or exceptions 

  
SCHEDULE B - SECTION 2 
  GENERAL EXCEPTIONS 

  
The Policy or Policies to be issued will contain Exceptions to the following unless the same are disposed 
of to the satisfaction of the Company. 
  

A. Taxes or assessments which are not shown as existing liens by the records of any taxing 
authority that levies taxes or assessments on real property or by the public records. 

  
B. Any facts, rights, interest, or claims which are not shown by the public records but which could 

be ascertained by an inspection of said land or by making inquiry of person in possession thereof. 
  

C. Easements, claims of easement or encumbrances which are not shown by the public records. 
  

D. Discrepancies, conflicts in boundary lines, shortage in area, encroachments, or any other facts 
which a correct survey would disclose, and which are not shown by public records. 

  
E. (1) Unpatented mining claims; (2) reservations or exceptions in patents or in acts authorizing the 

issuance thereof; (3) Water rights, claims or title to water; whether or not the matters excepted 
under (1), (2) or (3) are shown by the public records; (4) Indian Tribal Codes or Regulations, 
Indian Treaty or Aboriginal Rights, including easements or equitable servitudes. 

  
F. Any lien, or right to a lien, for services, labor, materials or medical assistance theretofore or 

hereafter furnished, imposed by law and not shown by the public records. 
  

G. Any service, installation, connection, maintenance, construction, tap or reimbursement 
charges/costs for sewer, water, garbage or electricity. 

  
H. Defects, liens, encumbrances, adverse claims or other matters, if any, created, first appearing in 

the public records or attaching subsequent to the effective date hereof but prior to the date the 
proposed insured acquires of record for value the estate or interest or mortgages thereon 
covered by this Commitment. 

  

=

35 of 52



  
Form WA-5 (6/76) File No.: NCS-645854-WA1
Commitment  Page No. 4
  

 

First American Title Insurance Company  
 

=  

SCHEDULE B - SECTION 2 
(continued) 

SPECIAL EXCEPTIONS 
  

1. Lien of the Real Estate Excise Sales Tax and Surcharge upon any sale of said premises, if 
unpaid.  As of the date herein, the excise tax rate for the City of Covington  is at 1.78%. 
Levy/Area Code: 1064  

For all transactions recorded on or after July 1, 2005: 
• A fee of $10.00 will be charged on all exempt transactions; 
• A fee of $5.00 will be charged on all taxable transactions in addition to 

the excise tax due. 

2. Reservations contained in Deed from the State of Washington recorded under recording no. 
890435, reserving all oil, gases, coal, ores, minerals, fossils, etc., and the right of entry for 
opening, developing and working the same. 

3. Covenants, conditions, restrictions and/or easements: 
  
  Recorded: April 10, 1920 
  Recording No.: 1408211 
  

4. Reservations contained in Deed from the State of Washington recorded under recording no. 
1918903, reserving all oil, gases, coal, ores, minerals, fossils, etc., and the right of entry for 
opening, developing and working the same. 

5. The terms and provisions contained in the document entitled "Sensitive Area Notice" 
recorded April 2, 1991 as 9104020928 of Official Records.   

Said instrument is a re-record of recording no(s). 9104010629. 

6. Easement, including terms and provisions contained therein: 
  
  Recording Information: 20110516000389  
  In Favor of: Puget Sound Energy, Inc.  
  For: Transmission, distribution and sale of electricity  
  

7. Matters of extended owner/purchaser coverage which are dependent upon an inspection and an 
ALTA survey of the property for determination of insurability. 

  
Please submit a copy of the ALTA Survey at your earliest convenience for review.  Our inspection 
will be held pending our review of the ALTA Survey and the result of said inspection will be 
furnished by supplemental report. 

8. This item has been intentionally deleted. 

9. Unrecorded leaseholds, if any, rights of vendors and security agreement on personal property 
and rights of tenants, and secured parties to remove trade fixtures at the expiration of the term. 

36 of 52



  
Form WA-5 (6/76) File No.: NCS-645854-WA1
Commitment  Page No. 5
  

 

First American Title Insurance Company  
 

 

10. Delinquent General Taxes for the year 2016.    
  
  Tax Account No.:   362205-9071-02 
  
  Amount Billed: $ 14,723.71
  Amount Paid: $ 0.00
  Amount Due: $ 14,723.71, plus 

interest
  Assessed Land Value: $ 1,125,000.00
  Assessed Improvement Value: $ 1,000.00
  

11. Lavelle W. Allmand died leaving a Non-Intervention Will.   
  Admitted to Probate: March 4, 2015 
  Probate Case No.: 15-4-01439-8, King County 
  Personal Representative: Ralph Louis Allmand 
  Attorney for Estate: Henry W. Grenley, WSBA#1321 
  

Said personal representative is authorized to administer the estate without intervention of court 
and to mortgage, convey or contract to convey decedent's interest in said premises. 

  

12. It is our understanding that Okla T. Allmand is now deceased.  However, we find no evidence of 
record in King County that said party is in fact deceased or of a probate of the estate of said 
decedent.  Therefore, the company will require the following prior to closing: 

  
(A) A completed signed and acknowledged Lack of Probate Affidavit, the form and substance 

of which is subject to the approval of this company; 
(B) A copy of the decedent's last will.  If the decedent did not leave a will, this should be so 

noted on the Lack of Probate Affidavit; 
(C) A copy of the community property agreement, if such existed.  If not, this should be 

noted on the Lack of Probate Affidavit. 
(D) Proof of death of the decedent, made by recording of death certificate in the office of the 

N/A County Auditor 

13. Potential charges, for the King County Sewage Treatment Capacity Charge, as authorized under 
RCW 35.58 and King County Code 28.84.050. Said charges could apply for any property that 
connected to the King County Sewer Service area on or after February 1, 1990.  

  
Note: Properties located in Snohomish County and Pierce County may be subject to the King 
County Sewage Treatment Capacity Charges.  To verify charges contact: (206) 296-1450 or 
CapChargeEscrow@kingcounty.gov.  

14. Prior to issuance of an extended coverage policy, the Company will require an Owner's Affidavit 
be completed and submitted to the Company for approval prior to closing.  The Company 
reserves the right to make any additional requirement as warranted. 

15. The terms and provisions contained in the document entitled "Memorandum of Easement 
Agreement" recorded May 9, 2016 as 20160509000371 of Official Records.   

37 of 52



  
Form WA-5 (6/76) File No.: NCS-645854-WA1
Commitment  Page No. 6
  

 

First American Title Insurance Company  
 

 
  

INFORMATIONAL NOTES 
  

  

A. Effective January 1, 1997, and pursuant to amendment of Washington State Statutes relating to 
standardization of recorded documents, the following format and content requirements must be 
met.  Failure to comply may result in rejection of the document by the recorder. 

B. Any sketch attached hereto is done so as a courtesy only and is not part of any title commitment 
or policy.  It is furnished solely for the purpose of assisting in locating the premises and First 
American expressly disclaims any liability which may result from reliance made upon it. 

C. The description can be abbreviated as suggested below if necessary to meet standardization 
requirements.  The full text of the description must appear in the document(s) to be insured. 

  
S. 36, Twn. 22N, Rge. 5E, SH NE and SE NW  

APN:  362205-9071-02 

 Property Address:  17081 Southeast Wax Road, Covington, WA 98042   

D. A fee will be charged upon the cancellation of this Commitment pursuant to the Washington 
State Insurance Code and the filed Rate Schedule of the Company. 

END OF SCHEDULE B 

38 of 52



  
Form WA-5 (6/76) File No.: NCS-645854-WA1
Commitment  Page No. 7
  

 

First American Title Insurance Company  
 

 

 
First American Title Insurance Company 

National Commercial Services 
  

COMMITMENT 
Conditions and Stipulations 

1. The term "mortgage" when used herein shall include deed of trust, trust deed, or other security 
instrument. 

  
2. If the proposed Insured has or acquires actual knowledge of a defect, lien, encumbrance, 

adverse claim or other matter affecting the estate or interest or mortgage thereon covered by 
this Commitment, other than those shown in Schedule B hereof, and shall fail to disclose such 
knowledge to the Company in writing, the Company shall be relieved from liability for any loss or 
damage resulting from any act or reliance hereon to the extent the Company is prejudiced by 
failure to so disclose such knowledge.  If the proposed Insured shall disclosure such knowledge 
to the Company, or if the Company otherwise acquires actual knowledge of any such defect, lien, 
encumbrance, adverse claim or other matter, the Company at its option, may amend Schedule B 
of this Commitment accordingly, but such amendment shall not relieve the Company from liability 
previously incurred pursuant to paragraph 3 of these Conditions and Stipulations. 

  
3. Liability of the Company under this Commitment shall be only to the named proposed Insured 

and such parties included under the definition of Insured in the form of Policy or Policies 
committed for, and only for actual loss incurred in reliance hereon in undertaking in good faith 
(a) to comply with the requirements hereof, or (b) to eliminate exceptions shown in Schedule B, 
or (c) to acquire or create the estate or interest or mortgage thereon covered by this 
Commitment.  In no event shall such liability exceed the amount stated in Schedule A for the 
Policy or Policies committed for and such liability is subject to the Insuring provisions, exclusion 
from coverage, and the Conditions and Stipulations of the form of Policy or Policies committed for 
in favor of the proposed Insured which are hereby incorporated by references, and are made a 
part of this Commitment except as expressly modified herein. 

  
4. Any claim of loss or damage, whether or not based on negligence, and which arises out of the 

status of the title to the estate or interest or the lien of the Insured mortgage covered hereby or 
any action asserting such claim, shall be restricted to the provisions and Conditions and 
Stipulations of this Commitment. 

39 of 52



  
Form WA-5 (6/76) File No.: NCS-645854-WA1
Commitment  Page No. 8
  

 

First American Title Insurance Company  
 

  
The First American Corporation 

First American Title Insurance Company 
National Commercial Services 

  
 PRIVACY POLICY 
  
We Are Committed to Safeguarding Customer Information  
  
In order to better serve your needs now and in the future, we may ask you to provide us with certain information.  We understand that you may be 
concerned about what we will do with such information particularly any personal or financial information.  We agree that you have a right to know how 
we will utilize the personal information you provide to us.  Therefore, together with our parent company, The First American Corporation, we have 
adopted this Privacy Policy to govern the use and handling of your personal information. 
  
Applicability 
  
This Privacy Policy governs our use of the information which you provide to us.  It does not govern the manner in which we may use information we 
have obtained from any other source, such as information obtained from a public record or from another person or entity.  First American has also 
adopted broader guidelines that govern our use of personal information regardless of its source.  First American calls these guidelines its Fair 
Information Values, a copy of which can be found on our website at www.firstam.com. 
  
Types of Information  
  
Depending upon which of our services you are utilizing, the types of nonpublic personal information that we may collect include: 
  

• Information we receive from you on applications, forms and in other communications to us, whether in writing, in person, by 
telephone or any other means;  

  
• Information about your transactions with us, our affiliated companies, or others; and·  

  
• Information we receive from a consumer reporting agency.  

  
Use of Information  
  
We request information from you for our own legitimate business purposes and not for the benefit of any nonaffiliated party.  Therefore, we will not 
release your information to nonaffiliated parties except: (1) as necessary for us to provide the product or service you have requested of us; or (2) as 
permitted by law.  We may, however, store such information indefinitely, including the period after which any customer relationship has ceased.  Such 
information may be used for any internal purpose, such as quality control efforts or customer analysis.  We may also provide all of the types of 
nonpublic personal information listed above to one or more of our affiliated companies.  Such affiliated companies include financial service providers, 
such as title insurers, property and casualty insurers, and trust and investment advisory companies, or companies involved in real estate services, such 
as appraisal companies, home warranty companies, and escrow companies.  Furthermore, we may also provide all the information we collect, as 
described above, to companies that perform marketing services on our behalf, on behalf of our affiliated companies, or to other financial institutions 
with whom we or our affiliated companies have joint marketing agreements. 
  
Former Customers  
  
Even if you are no longer our customer, our Privacy Policy will continue to apply to you. 
  
Confidentiality and Security  
  
We will use our best efforts to ensure that no unauthorized parties have access to any of your information.  We restrict access to nonpublic personal 
information about you to those individuals and entities who need to know that information to provide products or services to you.  We will use our best 
efforts to train and oversee our employees and agents to ensure that your information will be handled responsibly and in accordance with this Privacy 
Policy and First American's Fair Information Values.  We currently maintain physical, electronic, and procedural safeguards that comply with federal 
regulations to guard your nonpublic personal information. 
  
c 2001 The First American Corporation - All Rights Reserved 
  

40 of 52



Agenda Item 4   
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: July 12, 2016 
 
SUBJECT:  CONSIDER AWARDING CONTRACT FOR THE COVINGTON AQUATIC 

CENTER ROOM ADDITION PROJECT TO CHRISTENSEN, INC, IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $169,144.50 AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT FOR THE SAME. 

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Ethan Newton, Parks & Recreation Director 
                                          
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Invitation to Bidders 
2. Bid Results 
3. Agreement with Christensen, Inc. General Contractor 

 
PREPARED BY:  Ethan Newton, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
EXPLANATION: 
On May 27, 2016, the city advertised an invitation to bidders for the Covington Aquatic Center 
(CAC) Room Addition Project (“Project”). Bid openings for the Project occurred on June 22, 
2016. 
 
The Project adds approximately 700 sq. ft. of building space to the existing concrete framed 
Aquatic Center facility to be used as a multipurpose room (for recreation programs, birthday 
party rentals, lifeguard training, etc.). Work includes excavation to the depth of the original 
sloping grade, structural backfill, finish grading, re-routing or installation of modified utilities 
including footing drains, concrete sidewalks, footings, and slab-on-grade, wood framed walls, 
premanufactured roof trusses, asphalt composition shingles, metal gutters, downspouts, flashing, 
horizontal lap cement board siding and trim boards, vinyl windows, installation of door into 
existing aluminum storefront system (includes demolition of frame and glazing), GWB, new 
countertop, sealed concrete floors, HVAC unit and ducting, grilles and louvers, electrical lights, 
and power. During the bidding process, the city issued one bid additive for the relocation of the 
domestic water supply line.  
  
Four bids were received by the city and the total bids (base bid plus the bid additive) ranged from 
$169,144.50 to $301,473.60. The architect’s cost estimate range for all Project work, including 
the bid additive is between $170,000 and $190,000. The lowest bid was submitted by 
Christensen, Inc. General Contractor (“Christensen”) in the amount of $169.144.50. 
 
To be considered the lowest responsive and responsible bibber, a bid must substantially comply 
with the applicable bid procedures and specifications. However, the low bid by Christensen had 
an irregularity in the form of the bid amount, wherein they only included a lump sum bid amount 
for all Project work, rather than breaking out the subtotals for the original scope of work and the 
bid additive, as required by the bid form issued with the bid additive. Because Christensen 
signed and indicated acknowledgement of all bid additions issued by the city for the Project, the 

41 of 52



city chose to waive the bid informalities and considered Christensen’s lump sum bid amount as 
inclusive of all Project work, including the bid addition. The waiver of this informality provided 
no advantage to Christensen over the other bidders as, again, Christensen signed and 
acknowledged that the bid amount was inclusive of all Project work and bid additions. City staff 
notified Christensen of this informality and Christensen confirmed that they would agree to 
perform all Project work, including that in the bid additive, for their submitted bid amount of 
$169,144.50. The city has clarified this bid informality in the Project agreement. (Attachment 3) 
 
Given that a qualifying bid was received within the project budget, staff’s recommendation to 
council is to award the contract for the Project to Christensen in the amount of $169,144.50. 
 
ALTERNATIVES:   

1. Reject all bids and rebid the Project, which would delay the Project. 
2. Reject all bids and choose not to proceed with the Project. Terminating the Project will 

require the city to decline the state grant funds. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
The Project is funded by a Washington State Department of Commerce grant. The grant amount 
allocated for the Project is $242,107.46 and has been approved for expenditure in the 2016 city 
budget. There are ample funds in this grant to award this bid as proposed and complete this 
Project. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance          Resolution      X   Motion          Other 
 

Council member __________  moves, Council member  ____________  
seconds, to award the contract for the Covington Aquatic Center 
Room Addition Project to Christensen, Inc. General Contractor as 
the lowest responsive bidder in the amount of $169,144.50 and to 
authorize the City Manager to execute an agreement with 
Christensen, Inc. General Contractor for the same. 

 
REVIEWED BY:  Finance Director, City Attorney, City Manager 

42 of 52



 

INVITATION TO BIDDERS 
COVINGTON AQUATIC CENTER (CAC) ROOM ADDITION 

Pre-Bid Meeting: 10:30 am on Tuesday, June 7, 2016 
Bid due date:  2:00pm on Thursday, June 16, 2016 2 PM on Wednesday, June 22, 2016 (addendum #1) 
 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The City of Covington (the “City” or the “Owner”) requests sealed bid proposals for 

construction services for the City of Covington Aquatics Center (“CAC”) project (the “Project”). This Project, as 

more completely described in the Contract Documents, generally include construction of the following: 

This Project consists of an addition to the existing concrete framed Aquatic Center facility.  Work 

includes excavation to the depth of the original sloping grade, structural backfill, finish grading, re-

routing or installation of modified utilities including footing drains, concrete sidewalks, footings, 

and slab-on-grade, wood framed walls, premanufactured roof trusses, asphalt compositions 

shingles, metal gutters, downspouts, and flashing, horizontal lap cement board siding and trim 

boards, vinyl windows, installation of door into existing aluminum storefront system (includes 

demolition of frame and glazing), GWB, new countertop, sealed concrete floors, rubber accessories, 

HVAC unit and ducting, grilles and louvers, electrical lights, power. Scope includes miscellaneous 

items related to removal of existing and installation of new systems.   

ESTIMATE / TIME FOR COMPLETION: The architect’s cost estimate range is between $170,000 and $190,000, 
including WSST. The entire project, including cleanup, shall be physically completed within One Hundred 
Twenty (120) calendar days after the commencement date stated in the Notice to Proceed. All bidding and 
construction is to be performed in compliance with the Contract Documents and Project Manual for this 
Project and any addenda issued thereto which are on file at the office of the City Clerk, City Hall, City of 
Covington, Washington. 

PROJECT MANUAL: The Project Manual for this Project, including plans, specifications, and addenda may be 

obtained as follows: 

 From the Project Architect, David A. Clark Architects, 33017 134th Ave SE, Auburn, WA 98092 

 Bidders may examine the Project Manual at Covington City Hall or at the office of the Architect.  

 Only bidders who obtain full sets of the Project Manual from the Project Architect will be listed on 

the official “Planholder’s List”, used for distribution of addendum and other official and legal 

purposes. A list of firms obtaining plans from other sources shall not be kept.   

INQUIRIES:  Inquiries regarding this Project may be directed to the Project Architect, David A. Clark Architects, 

Attn: David Clark, (253) 351-8877 or by email at dclark@clarkarchitects.com. All formal inquiries must be received 

in writing (email is acceptable) no later than 5:00pm on Wednesday, June 8, 2016, and addressed to the Project 

Architect, David A. Clark.  

ATTACHMENT 1

43 of 52

mailto:dclark@clarkarchitects.com


CITY OF COVINGTON 
COVINGTON AQUATIC CENTER (CAC) ADDITION PROJECT 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

PRE-BID SITE VISIT: A pre-bid site visit will be held at 10:30 am on Tuesday, June 7, 2016, meeting at the entry 

of the Covington Aquatics Center at 18230 SE 240th Street, Covington, WA  98042. All prospective bidders are 

strongly encouraged to attend. Non-attendance on the part of the bidder shall not relieve the bidder of any 

responsibility for adherence to any of the provisions of the bid documents or any addenda. 

BID SUBMITTAL: Sealed bid proposals will be received only at the City of Covington, City Hall, 16720 SE 271st 

Street, Suite 100, Covington, WA 98042, or hand delivered to the City reception desk, no later than 2:00pm on 

Thursday, June 16, 2016 2:00pm on Wednesday, June 22, 2016 (addendum #1), after which time bids will be 

publicly opened and read. Bid proposals received after the time fixed for opening will not be considered. The 

outside of all bid envelopes must be clearly labeled with the following information: “Bid Documents”, name of 

project, date and time of bid opening, and the bidder’s business name, address, and telephone. Bid proposals 

are to be submitted only on the form provided with the Contract Documents. 

BID GUARANTY / WITHDRAWAL: All bid proposals must be accompanied by a certified check, cashier’s check, 

money order, or bid bond payable to the “City of Covington” and in an amount of not less than five percent 

(5%) of the total amount bid. No bidder may withdraw their bid proposal after the time fixed for opening 

thereof, or before award of contract, unless said award is delayed for a period exceeding ninety (90) calendar 

days. 

PREVAILING WAGES: The contractor and all subcontractors will be required to pay prevailing wages as specified 

in the Contract Documents.  

RIGHTS RESERVED: The City of Covington expressly reserves the right to reject any or all bid proposals and to 

waive minor irregularities or informalities in the bidding process. The City of Covington reserves the right to 

award the Project contract to the lowest responsive, responsible bidder based on the Bid Proposal as it best 

serves the interests of the city. In determining the lowest responsive, responsible bidder, consideration will be 

given to the criteria listed in RCW 39.04 and the Contract Documents. 

INTENDED DATES OF PUBLICATION: Seattle Daily Journal of Commerce: May 27, 2016 and June 6, 2016; 

Covington Reporter: May 27, 2016. 

 

44 of 52



       DAVID A. CLARK

      ARCHITECTS, PLLC

City of Covington Estimate $ 179,667

Aquatics Center

Room Addition 22-Jun-16 Bid Date

Bid Results Base Bid Bid Alternate 1 B
id

 P
ro

p
o
sa

l

A
d
d
en

d
u
m

 1
 a

ck
n
o
w

le
d
g
ed

?

B
id

 S
ec

u
ri

ty

1
0
%

 l
is

t 
(w

it
h
in

 7
 d

ay
s)

Q
u
al

. 
S

ta
te

m
en

t

No. Contractor

1 Christensen Construction 169,144.50$  Incl. in base bid X X X X

2 Danneko Construction 182,448.00$  20,634.00$  X X X

3 Collaborative Construction 215,648.11$  10,936.02$  X X X X

4 Rod McConkey Construction 284,097.60$  17,376.00$  X X X X X

David A. Clark Architects, PLLC Bid results - CAC 062216: Printed 6/24/2016, 12:56 PM

ATTACHMENT 2

45 of 52



CITY OF COVINGTON 
PUBLIC WORKS AGREEMENT 

COVINGTON AQUATICS CENTER ADDITION PROJECT 

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into on the date last below written between the CITY OF COVINGTON (the 
“Owner” or the “City”) and Christensen Inc. General Contractor (the “Contractor”), collective referred to as the 
“Parties”, for the public works project known as the Covington Aquatics Center (CAC) Addition (the “Project”).  

In consideration of the terms and conditions contained herein, the Parties agree as follows: 

1. PROJECT WORK. The Contractor shall construct an addition to the Covington Aquatics Center building and
relocate the domestic water supply line as outlined and as further shown, described, and indicated in
Attachment A hereto, and incorporated fully herein by this reference (the “Project Work”). The Contractor
shall execute the Project Work upon receipt of a Notice to Proceed and as directed by the City.

2. PAYMENT. The City shall pay the Contractor for all Project Work performed under this Agreement the firm
fixed price set forth in the Contractor’s Bid Proposal (Attachment B) in the amount of $169,144.50.

The Contractor expressly acknowledges and agrees that the lump sum bid amount of $169,144.50 is for
performance of all Project Work, including the original scope of work for the CAC addition and the bid
addition work for the relocation of the domestic water supply line.

3. CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBILITIES. The Contractor shall perform all Project Work and furnish and bear the
expense of all tools, materials, equipment, and labor as may be required for the transfer of materials and for
construction and completion of the Project Work, except as otherwise designated in the Project plans and
specifications, “to be provided by the City.” The Contractor agrees to perform any necessary alterations in or
additions to the Project Work as required by the City. The Contractor shall complete the Project Work in
accordance with and as described in the Project plans and specifications and Contract Documents, as
defined herein. Contractor binds him/herself, his/her heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and
assigns.

4. CITY RESPONSIBILITIES. The City agrees to engage the Contractor to perform all work necessary to complete
the Project Work according to the Project plans and specification under the terms and conditions contained
in this Agreement and the Contract Documents, as defined herein. The City agrees to pay the Contractor
according to the Contractor’s Bid Proposal at the time, in the manner, and upon the conditions provided for
in the Contract Documents.

5. PROJECT TIMELINE. The Contractor shall substantially complete the Project Work required within 105
working days (the Substantial Completion Date) and physically complete the Project Work within 120
working days (the Physical Completion Date) after the City’s issuance of the Notice to Proceed.

6. LIQUIDATED DAMAGES. The Owner and the Contractor recognize that time is of the essence and that the
Owner will suffer financial loss if the Project Work is not completed within the time, plus any extensions
thereof, allowed in accordance with this Agreement. They also recognize the inconvenience, expense, and
difficulties involved in a legal proceeding to prove the actual loss suffered by the Owner if the Project Work
is not completed within the time allowed in this Agreement. Accordingly, the Owner and the Contractor
agree that as liquidated damages for delay, and not as a penalty, the Contractor shall pay the Owner six
hundred dollars ($600 USD) per day for each working day beyond the Substantial Completion Date that the
Contractor achieves substantial completion of the Project Work and six hundred dollars ($600 USD) for each

ATTACHMENT 3

46 of 52



CITY OF COVINGTON PUBLIC WORKS AGREEMENT 

Page 2 of 3 
 

working day beyond the Physical Completion Date that the Contractor achieves physical completion of the 
Project Work. 

  
7. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. This Agreement, which comprises the entire agreement between the Owner and 

the Contractor concerning the Project Work, includes the following “Contract Documents”, each and all of 
which are fully incorporated herein by reference, as if fully set forth in this Agreement: 
7.1. Invitation for Bids; 
7.2. Instructions to Bidders; 
7.3. Addenda; 
7.4. Bid Proposal Form, including the bid, bid schedule(s), information required of bidder, bid security 

bond, and all required certificates and affidavits; 
7.5. Bid Addendum #1  
7.6. Performance bond and the labor and material payment bond; 
7.7. Insurance Questionnaire 
7.8. Special Provisions 
7.9. General Conditions 
7.10. Plans (drawings) consisting of _____ sheets; 
7.11. Standard Specification; 
7.12. Notice of Award; 
7.13. Notice to Proceed; and 
7.14. Change Orders, Construction Change Directives, or Minor Change in the Work issued after the 

effective date of this Agreement. 
 
There are no Contract Documents other than those listed in this Section 7. The provisions of the Contract 
Documents may be amended only in writing by Change Order. In the event that any provision or term of the 
Contract Documents conflicts with a provision or term of this Agreement, the provision or term of this 
Agreement shall prevail. 
 
8. MISCELLANEOUS. 

8.1. The Contractor shall not assign any rights under or interests in this Agreement, including but not limited 
to rights to payment, without the prior written consent of the Owner. Unless specifically stated in a 
written consent to an assignment, no assignment will release or discharge the Contractor-assignor from 
any duty or responsibility under this Agreement. 
 

8.2. This Agreement is binding upon the Owner and the Contractor, and their respective partners, 
successors, assigns, and legal representatives. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereby execute this Agreement as set forth below. 
 
CITY OF COVINGTON  CONTRACTOR 

I certify by signing below that I am a duly authorized signatory 
for the Contractor: 

 
By  By  
(Name / Title)  (Name / Title) 
 
Date  Date  
 
Attest  
 

47 of 52



CITY OF COVINGTON PUBLIC WORKS AGREEMENT 

Page 3 of 3 
 

  Address for giving notices: 
 
    
   
  ________________________________________ 
 
  License No.   
 
  Agent for service of process:  
 
    
 
 
 
 
 

 

48 of 52



  
Covington City Council Meeting 

           Date:  July 12, 2016 

 
 

DISCUSSION OF  
FUTURE AGENDA TOPICS: 

 
 

6:00 p.m., Tuesday, July 26, 2016 
 Special Meeting 

Joint Study Session with Parks & Recreation Commission 
 
 

7:00 p.m., Tuesday, July 26, 2016 
 Regular Meeting 

 
 
 

(Draft Agendas Attached) 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

49 of 52



 
 
 
 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA 

CITY COUNCIL JOINT STUDY SESSION WITH PARKS & RECREATION COMMISSION 
Council Chambers – 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

www.covingtonwa.gov 
 

Tuesday, July 26, 2016 – 6:00 p.m. 
                                                                         
GENERAL INFORMATION: 
The study session is an informal meeting involving discussion between and among the City Council, 
Commissioners, and city staff regarding policy issues.  Study sessions may involve presentations, 
feedback, brainstorming, etc., regarding further work to be done by the staff on key policy matters. 
 
CALL CITY COUNCIL JOINT STUDY SESSION TO ORDER 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
ITEM(S) FOR DISCUSSION 
1. TBD (_________) 
2 TBD (_________) 
 
ADJOURN 
 
 
Americans with Disabilities Act – reasonable accommodations provided upon request a minimum of 24 hours in advance 
(253-480-2400). 
 
 
 

*Note* A Regular Council meeting will follow at approximately 7:00 p.m. 

Draft 
as of 07/07/16 

 

50 of 52

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/


 
 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

www.covingtonwa.gov 
 
 
Tuesday, July 26, 2016                                                                                                          City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                                            16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
Note:  A Joint Study Session with the Parks & Recreation Commission is scheduled from 6:00 to 7:00 p.m. 

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION - NONE 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, not the audience 
or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes per speaker.  Speakers may request 
additional time on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes:  June 14, 2016 Special Meeting; June 14, 2016 Regular Meeting; June 28, 2016 Regular 

Meeting; July 12, 2016 Special Meeting; and July 12, 2016 Regular Meeting (Scott) 
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson)  
 
REPORTS OF COMMISSIONS 
• Human Services Chair ___________:  July 14 meeting. 
• Parks & Recreation Chair Laura Morrissey:  July 20 meeting. 
• Arts Chair ___________:  July 14 meeting. 
• PRePAC Chair Jennifer Harjehausen:  June 29 meeting. 
• Economic Development Council:  next meeting July 28.  
• Planning:  July meetings canceled. 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
1. Approve Gerry Crick Skate Park Public Art Project Design (Feser) 
 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT *See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – if needed 
 

Draft 
as of 07/07/16 

 

51 of 52

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/


ADJOURN 
 
Americans with Disabilities Act – reasonable accommodations provided upon request a minimum of 24 hours in advance 
(253-480-2400). 

52 of 52


	07-12-2016 Special & Regular Meeting Agenda (Interviews)
	Tuesday, July 12, 2016                                                                                                          City Council Chambers
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA

	Consent C-1 Green Sheet 07-12-2016 Voucher Green Sheet
	Consent Agenda Item C-1

	Consent C-1 Attachments
	Agenda Item 1 Blue Sheet 07-12-2016 Appointment to Arts Commission
	Agenda Item 1

	Agenda Item 2 Blue Sheet 07-12-2016 CEDC Appointment
	Agenda Item 2

	Agenda Item 3 Blue Sheet SoCo Park Property Acquisitionv2
	Agenda Item 3

	Agenda Item 3 Attachment 1 Proposed Resolution for Acquisition of Park Propertyv2
	Agenda Item 3 Attachment 2 Allmand PSA - FINAL -6 27 16
	Allmand PSA - FINAL -6.27.16
	REAL ESTATE PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT
	RECITALS
	AGREEMENT

	Title Commitment update 6.27.16

	Agenda Item 4 Blue Sheet, Covington Aquatic Center Room Project v2
	Agenda Item 4

	Agenda Item 4 Attachment 1 Invitation to Bidders
	Agenda Item 4 Attachment 2 Bid results - CAC 062216
	Agenda Item 4 Attachment 3 Agreement with Christensen Inc
	Future Agenda Cover Sheet for Two Meetings
	07-26-2016 Special Joint Meeting w-P&R Commission Agenda
	Tuesday, July 26, 2016 – 6:00 p.m.
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA

	07-26-2016 Regular Meeting Agenda
	Tuesday, July 26, 2016                                                                                                          City Council Chambers
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	PUBLIC COMMUNICATION - NONE




